
SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
THURSDAY 7 JULY 2022 at 2pm 

 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER - CIVIC SUITE, SOLIHULL 
 

 
 
 

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER  
 

PANEL 

Public Document Pack



Disclosing Pecuniary Interests - What Must You Do? 

 

 (a) You must complete a declaration of your disclosable pecuniary interests, including those of 
your spouse/civil partner (or someone with whom you are living as such) and send it to the 
Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your election or appointment to the Council. 

(b)  When you attend a meeting of the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Board, Committee, Sub-
Committee or Joint Committee etc, and a matter arises in which you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, unless you have been granted a dispensation, you must: 

 Declare the interest if you have not already registered it 

 Not participate in any discussion or vote 

 Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with 

 Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 
the meeting 

(c) If you are the Leader or a Cabinet Portfolio Holder you may not exercise any of your 
delegated powers as a single member in relation to a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or take any other step except to give written notice of any unregistered interest 
to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your becoming aware of the interest, or arrange for 
another person or body to deal with the matter. 

 

Disclosable Interest 

 

Description 

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain by you 
or your partner. 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the Council) 
made or provided within 12 months of your declaration of interests in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election 
expenses. 

Contracts Any contract between you or your partner (or a firm or body corporate in which you or 
your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities of which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest)) and the Council  
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Council and which gives you 
or your partner a right to occupy the land or receive income. 

Licences Any licence held by you or your partner (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the Council for a month or longer. 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the Council; and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial interest i.e. a firm or 
body corporate in which you or your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities 
of which you or your partner has a beneficial interest. 

Securities Any beneficial interest held by you or your partner in securities of a body where— 
 
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the 
Council; and 
(b) either— 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class. 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 
building society. 



 
  

SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN  
BOROUGH COUNCIL 



 
To: Councillors M Allen (Chairman), 
P Hogarth MBE and Mrs D Holl-Allen MBE 
 

 
NICK PAGE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Council House, Manor Square 
Solihull, West Midlands. B91 3QB 
Tel. 0121-704 6000  
 
David Acton 
Tel: 0121 704-6156 
Email: dacton@solihull.gov.uk  
 
Date 9 June 2022 
 

 
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER PANEL 

 
THURSDAY 7 JULY 2022 

 
AGENDA 

 

1.  TPO 01310 - 23 WARREN DRIVE, DORRIDGE (Pages 5 - 26) 
To consider the confirmation of Tree Preservation Order TPO/01310 following 
the receipt of an objection. 

mailto:dacton@solihull.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



TREE PRESERVATION ORDER APPEALS PANEL 
 

7th JULY 2022 
 

REPORT OF HEAD OF PLANNING, DESIGN AND ENGAGEMENT SERVICES 
 

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER APPEALS PANEL 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
To consider the confirmation of Tree Preservation Order TPO/01310 following the 
receipt of an objection. 
 
Location  
 
Ward: Dorridge and Hockley Heath 
 
Background 
 
The order was made due to a request from a neighbour adjoining the site, following 
the loss of other trees in the area. 
 
A TEMPO assessment of the tree was undertaken, which recorded a score of 16. 
This is an extremely high score and falls within the category of ‘Definitely merits 
TPO” A copy of the assessment is appended to this report. 
 
Emails of objection, have been received from Louise Gordon of 23 Warren Drive, the 
objection details are as follows: 
 
Objections Received 
 
An objection to the conforming of the TPO has been received from Ms. Gordon, who 
opposes the Order on the following summarised grounds: 
 

 Nobody has assessed the health of the tree; 

 Large trees have been removed in the area for very good reason- entrance to 
property, roots causing problems, blocking light and safety; 

 The problem when developers leave monster trees in people’s gardens is 
they become so much bigger than the house; 

 The tree is enormous; 

 Safety concerns; 

 Falling trees have previously killed people; 

 There are no plans to cut the tree down; and 

 The TPO would affect the saleability of the house 
 
The case for the Council 

The single Wellingtonia tree in question is located in the rear garden of 23 Warren 

Drive, Dorridge, specifically in the south-west part of the garden. The tree was 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



inspected from the front garden of the property and the canopy did not reveal any 

known significant health defects, and as such was provided with a conservative 

retention of 20-40 years. It is classed as a very large tree, which is considered to be 

clearly visible within the local environment (and of reasonable/good form with no 

significant structural issues within the canopy). 

The high TEMPO score attained on completion of the assessment demonstrates and 

reinforces the fact that the tree is thought to contribute significantly to the rich 

arboreal character and appearance of this part of Dorridge. In order to retain its 

contribution to this location (whilst the tree is absent of any significant defects) it is 

recommended that a TPO is applied in order to preserve the tree. 

The above notwithstanding, the Council’s response to the detailed points raised by 

the objector are as follows: 

1. No one has examined the tree or even had the good manners to inform me of 
this intended proposal. Someone has just sat at their desk and made a 
decision based on the fact other houses have had trees cut down. 

 

The reason outlined in the TEMPO assessment was based on comments received 

by the Council from the public that requested for the tree to be protected. 

 

2.  I know there has been a few trees cut down recently for very good reason. 
Entrance to property, roots causing problems, blocking light and also safety. 

 

As above, protecting the trees under a TPO does not prevent any future works to the 

trees (unless the works are deemed to be harmful or without arboricultural merit).  If 

the health status of the preserved tree should significantly deteriorate in the future 

(as a consequence of clear defects or pathological infections) the Council will not 

seek to prevent any reasonable management approach. 

 

3. The problem when developers leave monster trees in people’s gardens’ they 
become so much bigger than the house. 

 

It is the Councils view that the residential development retained this Wellingtonia tree 

for the amenity benefits it affords to the local community. 

 

4. Just last weekend a boy was killed by a falling tree and back in 2001, a tree 
killed a child in Ashtead, Surrey that the council refused to cut down. Low and 
behold just after her funeral, they cut it down. 

Page 6



At present it is not apparent that there are any significant arboricultural defects 

associated with this specific tree. The Council would clearly reconsider this 

assessment if the appellant is able to provide evidence of any such defect. In making 

this order the Council recognises that the future health status of the tree could 

change and if (at any point in the future) defects or infections are identified that 

indicate that the tree requires further works (i.e. active management) the TPO will 

not prevent any reasonable future works to the tree. 

Conclusion 
 
The Panel are therefore invited to confirm the Order. 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Acton, David (Resources Directorate - Solihull MBC)

From: Acton, David (Resources Directorate - Solihull MBC)
Sent: 09 June 2022 15:57
To: Acton, David (Resources Directorate - Solihull MBC)
Subject: FW: TPO 01310

 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Lou Gordon   
Sent: 10 May 2022 16:06 
To: Mills, Kevin (Resources Directorate - Solihull MBC)  
Subject: Re: TPO 01310 
 
CAUTION: This e-mail originated from outside of the Council. Ensure you trust the sender before clicking on any links 
or opening attachments.  
Please could you update me on this subject. 
 
 I believe the last correspondence with you was a reply saying it was going to be discussed at a meeting. I have heard 
nothing  
 
 I am strongly against you putting a TPO on MY tree!! I have no plans to cut it down but it is enormous!! Also the 
saleability should I ever wish to ever sell my house 
 
I understand one of my neighbours got in a tis about another neighbour who had trees cut down so they could 
extend. This gentleman has no large trees in his garden and has an extended home   I believe it’s a case of do as I 
Say, not as I do !! 
 
I know people have had large trees cut down in the area  but with small gardens and sometimes restricted vision it 
can be a practical choice.  It’s ridiculous that developers leave trees in place that dwarf the houses.  
 
Another point is safety.  
 
I will contest this decision  
 
I look forward to your reply 
 
Louise Gordon   
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
> On 2 Feb 2022, at 14:55, Lou Gordon  wrote: 
>  
>  
> Dear Sir 
>  
> I refer to the above and your letter dated 18 January  
>  
> I am very surprised you have put a TPO on a tree in my garden without even assessing that it is in good health!!  
No one has examined the tree or even had to good manners to inform me of this intended proposal. Someone has 
just sat at their desk and made a decision based on the fact other houses have had trees cut down. I know there has 
been a few trees cut down recently for very good reason. Entrance to property, roots causing problems, blocking 
light and also safety.  
>  

Page 9



2

> The problem when developers leave monster trees in people’s gardens they become so much bigger than the 
house!! 
>  
> Just last weekend a boy was killed by a falling tree and back in 2001 , a tree killed a child in Ashtead, Surrey that 
the council refused to cut down   Low and behold just after her funeral, they cut it down!!! 
>  
> This has really irritated me and I look forward to your response. I am totally apposed to this I did leave a message 
for Ian Hislock but no response   
>  
> Louise Gordon 
>  
>  
> Sent from my iPhone 
 
 

Page 10



 

D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\0\4\AI00044401\$3mbrrmkv.doc 

 

 

 

The Owner/Occupier 
91 Avenue Drive 
Dorridge 
Solihull 
B93 8JY 

 

Your Ref.  

Our Ref. KM/TPO/105293 
 
IMPORTANT THIS COMMUNICATION 
AFFECTS YOUR PROPERTY 

 
Paul Johnson 
Director of Resources & Deputy Chief 
Executive 

Resources Directorate, 
Legal Services 
Council House 
Manor Square 
Solihull, West Midlands B91 3QB 
Tel 0121 704 8168 
Email: kmills@solihull.gov.uk 
Web: www.solihull.gov.uk 

Please ask for: Mr. Kevin Mills 

Date  18th January 2022

 
Dear Sir or Madam 
 
Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council 
23 Warren Drive, Dorridge, Solihull B93 8JY 
Tree Preservation Order 2022  (TPO 01310) 
 
The Council has made the above Tree Preservation Order to provide protection for trees on or 
affecting your property.  

By law the Council is required to serve copies of the Order on the owners and occupiers of 
adjoining land as well as the landowner affected. I enclose herewith for your attention, therefore, 
a copy of the Order, Notice and amenity assessment setting out the Council’s grounds for 
making it and the procedure to be followed if you wish to make an objection or representation in 
respect of its confirmation. Please note that the Order came into effect on 18th January 2022 and 
is subject to confirmation. 

I trust that the enclosures herewith are self-explanatory, however, if you have any queries 
please contact Ian Hiscock, on telephone number 0121 704 6410 If you are not the 
Owner(s), please draw the Owner(s) attention to this correspondence and if you are the 
Owner(s) but not the present Occupier(s) please draw all Occupiers' attention thereto. 

Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
Kevin Mills 
Legal Services 
Resources Directorate 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\0\4\AI00044401\$qo3pgi3f.doc 

 

 

 

The Owner/Occupier 
22 Warren Drive 
Dorridge 
Solihull 
B93 8JY 

 

Your Ref.  

Our Ref. KM/TPO/105293 
 
IMPORTANT THIS COMMUNICATION 
AFFECTS YOUR PROPERTY 

 
Paul Johnson 
Director of Resources & Deputy Chief 
Executive 

Resources Directorate, 
Legal Services 
Council House 
Manor Square 
Solihull, West Midlands B91 3QB 
Tel 0121 704 8168 
Email: kmills@solihull.gov.uk 
Web: www.solihull.gov.uk 

Please ask for: Mr. Kevin Mills 

Date  18th January 2022

 
Dear Sir or Madam 
 
Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council 
23 Warren Drive, Dorridge, Solihull B93 8JY 
Tree Preservation Order 2022  (TPO 01310) 
 
The Council has made the above Tree Preservation Order to provide protection for trees on or 
affecting your property.  

By law the Council is required to serve copies of the Order on the owners and occupiers of 
adjoining land as well as the landowner affected. I enclose herewith for your attention, therefore, 
a copy of the Order, Notice and amenity assessment setting out the Council’s grounds for 
making it and the procedure to be followed if you wish to make an objection or representation in 
respect of its confirmation. Please note that the Order came into effect on 18th January 2022 and 
is subject to confirmation. 

I trust that the enclosures herewith are self-explanatory, however, if you have any queries 
please contact Ian Hiscock, on telephone number 0121 704 6410 If you are not the 
Owner(s), please draw the Owner(s) attention to this correspondence and if you are the 
Owner(s) but not the present Occupier(s) please draw all Occupiers' attention thereto. 

Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
Kevin Mills 
Legal Services 
Resources Directorate 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\0\4\AI00044401\$vejz0umo.doc 

 

 

 

The Owner/Occupier 
23 Warren Drive 
Dorridge 
Solihull 
B93 8JY 

 

Your Ref.  

Our Ref. KM/TPO/105293 
 
IMPORTANT THIS COMMUNICATION 
AFFECTS YOUR PROPERTY 

 
Paul Johnson 
Director of Resources & Deputy Chief 
Executive 

Resources Directorate, 
Legal Services 
Council House 
Manor Square 
Solihull, West Midlands B91 3QB 
Tel 0121 704 8168 
Email: kmills@solihull.gov.uk 
Web: www.solihull.gov.uk 

Please ask for: Mr. Kevin Mills 

Date  18th January 2022

 
Dear Sir or Madam 
 
Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council 
23 Warren Drive, Dorridge, Solihull B93 8JY 
Tree Preservation Order 2022  (TPO 01310) 
 
The Council has made the above Tree Preservation Order to provide protection for trees on or 
affecting your property.  

By law the Council is required to serve copies of the Order on the owners and occupiers of 
adjoining land as well as the landowner affected. I enclose herewith for your attention, therefore, 
a copy of the Order, Notice and amenity assessment setting out the Council’s grounds for 
making it and the procedure to be followed if you wish to make an objection or representation in 
respect of its confirmation. Please note that the Order came into effect on 18th January 2022 and 
is subject to confirmation. 

I trust that the enclosures herewith are self-explanatory, however, if you have any queries 
please contact Ian Hiscock, on telephone number 0121 704 6410 If you are not the 
Owner(s), please draw the Owner(s) attention to this correspondence and if you are the 
Owner(s) but not the present Occupier(s) please draw all Occupiers' attention thereto. 

Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
Kevin Mills 
Legal Services 
Resources Directorate 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\0\4\AI00044401\$b5rb3dqq.doc 

 

 

 

The Owner/Occupier 
24 Warren Drive 
Dorridge 
Solihull 
B93 8JY 

 

Your Ref.  

Our Ref. KM/TPO/105293 
 
IMPORTANT THIS COMMUNICATION 
AFFECTS YOUR PROPERTY 

 
Paul Johnson 
Director of Resources & Deputy Chief 
Executive 

Resources Directorate, 
Legal Services 
Council House 
Manor Square 
Solihull, West Midlands B91 3QB 
Tel 0121 704 8168 
Email: kmills@solihull.gov.uk 
Web: www.solihull.gov.uk 

Please ask for: Mr. Kevin Mills 

Date  18th January 2022

 
Dear Sir or Madam 
 
Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council 
23 Warren Drive, Dorridge, Solihull B93 8JY 
Tree Preservation Order 2022  (TPO 01310) 
 
The Council has made the above Tree Preservation Order to provide protection for trees on or 
affecting your property.  

By law the Council is required to serve copies of the Order on the owners and occupiers of 
adjoining land as well as the landowner affected. I enclose herewith for your attention, therefore, 
a copy of the Order, Notice and amenity assessment setting out the Council’s grounds for 
making it and the procedure to be followed if you wish to make an objection or representation in 
respect of its confirmation. Please note that the Order came into effect on 18th January 2022 and 
is subject to confirmation. 

I trust that the enclosures herewith are self-explanatory, however, if you have any queries 
please contact Ian Hiscock, on telephone number 0121 704 6410 If you are not the 
Owner(s), please draw the Owner(s) attention to this correspondence and if you are the 
Owner(s) but not the present Occupier(s) please draw all Occupiers' attention thereto. 

Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
Kevin Mills 
Legal Services 
Resources Directorate 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



 TREE EVALUATION METHOD FOR PRESERVATION ORDERS - TEMPO 
 

SURVEY DATA SHEET & DECISION GUIDE 

 

 

 

 

 

Refer to guidance note for all definitions 
 

Part 1: Amenity assessment 

a) Condition & suitability for TPO; where trees are in good or fair condition have poor form, deduct 1 pt. 

 

5) Good Highly suitable 

3) Fair Suitable   

1) Poor Unlikely to be suitable   

0) Dead/dying/dangerous          Unsuitable 

 

b) Retention span (in years) & suitability for TPO: 

 

5) 100+  Highly suitable 

4) 40-100 Very suitable 

2) 20-40  Suitable 

1) 10-20  Just suitable 

0) <10*  Unsuitable 
* includes trees which are existing or near future nuisance, including those clearly outgrowing their context, or which are 

significantly negating the potential of other trees of better quality 
   

c) Relative public visibility & suitability for TPO: 
Consider realistic potential for future visibility with changed land use 

 

5) Very large trees with some visibility, or prominent large trees Highly suitable 

4) Large trees, or medium trees clearly visible to the public  Suitable 

3) Medium trees, or large trees with limited view only  Suitable 

2) Young, small or medium/large trees visible only with difficulty Barely suitable 

1) Trees not visible to the public, regardless of size   Probably unsuitable 

 

d) Other factors 
Trees must have accrued 7 or more points (with no zero score) to qualify 

 

5) Principal components of arboricultural features, or veteran trees 

4) Tree groups, or members of groups important for their cohesion 

3) Trees with identifiable historic, commemorative or habitat importance 

2) Trees of particularly good form, especially if rare or unusual 

1) Trees with none of the above additional redeeming features (including those of indifferent form) 

 

Part 2: Expediency assessment  
Trees must have accrued 9 or more points to qualify 

 

5) Immediate threat to tree 

3) Foreseeable threat to tree 

2) Perceived threat to tree 

1) Precautionary only 

 

 
Part 3: Decision guide 

 

Any 0  Do not apply TPO 

1-6  TPO indefensible 

7-11  Does not merit TPO 

12-15  TPO defensible 

16+  Definitely merits TPO 

Owner (if known):    Location:   (Tree 1)    Rear garden of 23 Warren Drive, Dorridge, B92 

8JY 

Score & Notes:   
5 (Highly suitable) – Well developed stature and 
species unique to the local area 

Score & Notes:   
2 (Suitable) – Realistic lifespan – Wellingtonia trees are long 
lived and this is a conservative estimate as to its lifespan 

Score & Notes:   
2- Trees of particularly good form, especially if 

rare or unusual – Rarity in the local area 

 

Score & Notes:   
5 (Highly suitable) 
– Very tall tree 
clearly visible within 
the local area 

Add Scores for Total: 

 
16 

 

Date: 10/01/2022. Surveyor:  KH Tree Species:  Wellingtonia (Sequoiadendron giganteum) 

Score & Notes:   
2 - Perceived threat to tree – The removal of 3 
x wellingtonia trees in the local area of similar 
stature is a cause for concern. 

Decision: 
 

(see below) 

 With 3 x removals of Wellingtonia trees within the local area it is of concerns that the tree 
found at 23 Warren Drive may suffer the same fate meriting a TPO to safeguard the tree 
long term. 

 Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 TPO 01310 - 23 Warren Drive, Dorridge
	Email Objections
	TPO letter - 91 Avenue Drive
	TPO letter - 22 Warren Drive
	TPO letter - 23 Warren Drive
	TPO letter - 24 Warren Drive
	Signed TPO Notice 01310
	Sealed TPO and Plan  01310
	TEMPO Form 01310


